

Meeting of the WSPU Executive Committee

Monday, 12th November 2018
13.00–15.00 hrs.

Library 1918 Room
Lobby Floor
Dusit Thani Bangkok Hotel



Bangkok, Thailand

WSPU 9th GA Secretariat

Bureau of Inter-Parliamentary Organizations
Secretariat of the House of Representatives
U-Thong Nai Road, Bangkok, 10300 Thailand
Tel. : +66 2357 3100 (ext.3160-1, 3249)

Fax : +66 2357 3154

E-mail: wspu9th@gmail.com

Agenda of the Executive Committee Meeting

Monday, 12th November 2018

13.00–15.00 hrs.

Library 1918 Room, Lobby Floor, Dusit Thani Bangkok Hotel

Bangkok, Thailand

-
- | | |
|----------------|---|
| <u>Item 1</u> | Approval of the Agenda of the Executive Committee Meeting |
| <u>Item 2</u> | Election of the New President and Vice-President(s) |
| <u>Item 3</u> | Nomination of Secretary-General, Secretary and Treasurer |
| <u>Item 4</u> | Introduction of the Executive Committee Members |
| <u>Item 5</u> | Nomination of a Drafting Committee (2 delegates) for the Draft Bangkok Declaration and the Concluding Report of the 9 th General Assembly |
| <u>Item 6</u> | Presentation of WSPU Activities by WSPU President Ewa Thalén Finné |
| <u>Item 7</u> | Finalization of the Draft Program and the Draft Agenda of the 9 th WSPU General Assembly |
| <u>Item 8</u> | Finalization of the Draft Bangkok Declaration |
| <u>Item 9</u> | Appointment of Rapporteurs for Each Meeting Session |
| <u>Item 10</u> | Report from the WSPU Secretariat Regarding Membership Fee |
| <u>Item 11</u> | Other Matters Related to the Work and Implementation of the WSPU (e.g. WSPU expansion, cooperation with WOSM, ways of strengthening relationship with National Scout Organizations, and amendment of the WSPU Constitution) |
| <u>Item 12</u> | Future Meetings of the WSPU |
-

Agenda Item 2
Election of the New President
And Vice-President(s)

In accordance with Article 7(2) of the WSPU Constitution, members of the Executive Committee serve between the General Assemblies. In the case of the President and the Vice-Presidents, their terms can be renewable more than once in order to ensure effective transition and keep continuity of the organizations. The terms of office of the incumbent President and Vice-Presidents of the WSPU began at the opening ceremony of the 8th WSPU General Assembly, and will end at the opening ceremony of the 9th WSPU General Assembly.

The Executive Committee is responsible for nominating the new President and, subject to Article 8(1) of the Constitution, up to 3 Vice-Presidents. The incoming President and Vice-Presidents will assume the positions when their nominations are confirmed at the General Assembly. Below are (1) the table showing the incumbent President and Vice-Presidents of the WSPU, and (2) the blank table to facilitate the committee's nomination of the new President and Vice-President(s).

I. Incumbent WSPU President and Vice-Presidents

Full names	Positions	NSPA (Country)
1. Madam Ewa Thalen Finne	President	Sweden
2. Dr. Thamrong Dasananjali	1 st Vice-President	Thailand
3. Mr. Ju-Young Lee	2 nd Vice-President	South Korea
4. -----(Vacant)-----	3 rd Vice-President	—

II. New WSPU President and Vice-President(s)

Full names	Positions	NSPA (Country)
1.	President	
2.	1 st Vice-President	
3.	2 nd Vice-President	
4.	3 rd Vice-President	

Issue to be considered: Election of the New President and Vice-President(s) of the World Scout Parliamentary Union (WSPU)

Conclusion(s): _____

Agenda Item 3
Nomination of Secretary-General,
Secretary and Treasurer

Article 8(2) of the Constitution allows the President to appoint a Secretary-General. In addition, according to Articles 8(2) and 8(4), the Executive Committee can appoint a Secretary and a Treasurer. Below are the table showing the incumbent Secretary-General and the blank table to facilitate the committee's consideration of the new Secretary-General, Secretary and Treasurer.

I. Incumbent Secretary-General

Full names	Positions	NSPA (Country)
1. Madam Katarina Hedberg	Secretary-General	Sweden
2. -----(Vacant)-----	Secretary	—
3. -----(Vacant)-----	Treasurer	—

II. New WSPU President and Vice-Presidents

Full names	Positions	NSPA (Country)
1.	Secretary-General	
2.	Secretary	
3.	Treasurer	

Issue to be considered: Nomination of Secretary-General, Secretary and Treasurer

Conclusion(s): _____

Agenda Item 4
Introduction of the Executive
Committee Members

Articles 7(1) of the Constitution states that “[t]he Executive Committee consists of 5 to 12 members from different countries elected by General Assembly [sic] and of one additional member designated by the World Scout Committee...”, which means the maximum number of the Executive Committee members is 13. In addition to this, Article 7(3) states that ‘[m]embers of the Executive Committee must be active parliamentarians in their respective countries. If they lose their parliamentary seat at home, they can stay members of the Executive Committee until the end of their WSPU mandate, but cannot stand for re-election.’

Since members of the Executive Committee serve between the General Assemblies, their terms will end at the opening of the 9th WSPU General Assembly. According to the traditional practice of the organization, the outgoing Executive Committee is responsible for introducing candidates to fill in the vacancies within the committee to the upcoming General Assembly. Below is the blank table to facilitate the committee’s consideration of the new Executive Committee members. Additionally, the name list of the incumbent Executive Committee provided by the WSPU Secretariat is attached hereafter.

Name list of the incoming Executive Committee

Full names	Incoming Positions	Countries
1.	President	
2.	1 st Vice-President	
3.	2 nd Vice-President	
4.	3 rd Vice-President	
5.	Member	
6.	Member	
7.	Member	
8.	Member	
9.	Member	
10.	Member	
11.	Member	
12.	Member	
13. (Nomination from the WOSM)	Member	

Issue to be considered: Introduction of the Executive Committee Members

Conclusion(s): _____

Agenda Item 7

Finalization of the Draft Program and
the Draft Agenda of the 9th WSPU
General Assembly



WSPU 9th GA Secretariat
 Bureau of Inter-Parliamentary Organizations
 Secretariat of the House of Representatives
 U-Thong Nai Road, Bangkok, 10300 Thailand
 Tel. : +66 2357 3100 (ext.3160-1, 3249)
 Fax : +66 2357 3154
 E-mail: wspu9th@gmail.com

Program of the 9th WSPU General Assembly
“Roles of the Parliament in Supporting Scout Movement towards SDGs Achievement”
12 – 14 November 2018
Dusit Thani Bangkok Hotel
Bangkok, Thailand

12th November 2018

– Arrival of the WSPU delegations –

Time	Activity	Location
09.00 – 17.00	Registration for Participants	Entrance to Napalai Ballroom
11.30 -13.00	Lunch for the Executive Committee	The Pavilion Restaurant
13.00 – 15.00	Executive Committee Meeting <i>(Only for the Executive Committee)</i>	Library 1918 Room
18.00 – 20.00	- Reception Dinner for all delegates - hosted by Chairperson and Members of the Organizing Committee <u>Dress:</u> Smart Casual	Dusit Thani Hall

13th November 2018

Time	Activity	Location
08.00 – 17.00	Registration for Participants	Entrance to Napalai Ballroom
08.35	Gathering (Welcoming by MC and VDO presentation)	Napalai Ballroom
09.00 – 09.50	Inaugural Ceremony <ul style="list-style-type: none"> The Ceremony in Tribute to His Majesty King Vajiravudh (Founder of the Thai Scout Movement) 	Napalai Ballroom
	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Report by Hon. Dr. Thamrong Dasananjali Chairperson of the Executive Committee of the Thai Scout Parliamentary Association Opening Address by H.E. Prof. Pornpetch Wichitcholchai President of the National Legislative Assembly of Thailand 	Napalai Ballroom
09.50 – 10.10	Photo Session	
10.10 – 10.30	- Break -	
10.30 – 12.00	Meeting of the Drafting Group to Finalize the Draft Bangkok Declaration (Pending)	Silom Room
10.30 – 11.00	Plenary Session <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Approval of agenda Report from the Executive Committee and approval of new members of the Executive Committee by Hon. Ms. Ewa Thalén Finné Introduction of the new President and Vice-Presidents Appointment of a Drafting Committee <u>Chair:</u> Hon. Ms. Ewa Thalén Finné <u>Co-Chair:</u> Hon. Dr. Thamrong Dasananjali	Napalai Ballroom

Time	Activity	Location
11.00 – 12.00	Plenary Session (Continued) <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Review of WSPU Activities for Future Scouting Development <u>Chair:</u> Hon. Dr. Thamrong Dasananjali <u>Co-Chair:</u> Hon. Ms. Ewa Thalén Finné <u>Speaker:</u> Mr. Steve Kent, WSPU Executive Committee Member (Canada)	Napalai Ballroom
12.00 – 13.30	<p align="center">- Lunch for all delegates -</p> <p align="center">hosted by H.E. Mr. Teerakiat Jareonsettasin Minister of Education of Thailand, Chairperson of the National Scout Council Board</p>	Dusit Thani Hall
13.30 – 16.00	Panel Discussion I: Roles of the Parliament to Ensure Lifelong Learning <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Panelists:- <ol style="list-style-type: none"> Dr. Disakul Kasemsawas The National Scout Organization of Thailand (Thailand) Hon. Mr. Tuang Untachai Chairperson of the NLA Committee on Education and Sports (Thailand) Mr. Olivier Mathieu, Chief Executive, Scouts and Guides of France (France) Moderators:- <ol style="list-style-type: none"> Clinical Professor Lt. Gen. Suphavit Muttamara The Thai Scout Parliamentary Association Mrs. Warawimon Rattanamaalee Secretariat of the Senate 	Napalai Room

Time	Activity	Location
	<p>Panel Discussion II: Possible Contributions of the WSPU to Achieve SDGs</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> ● Panelists:- <ol style="list-style-type: none"> (1) Mrs. Kanchana Patarachoke Ministry of Foreign Affairs (Thailand) (2) Police Major General Chalermchai Pimolsri Border Patrol Police (Thailand) (3) Madam Jacky Deromedi Senator Representing French Citizens Living Abroad (France) ● Moderators:- <ol style="list-style-type: none"> (1) Mr. Suvat Chirapant Thai Scout Parliamentary Association (2) Dr. Virin Daenraj The National Scout Organization of Thailand 	Vimarn Suriya
	<p>Panel Discussion III: Scouting and Parliamentary Roles in Synergizing Efforts in Response to Global Challenges</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> ● Panelists:- <ol style="list-style-type: none"> (1) H.E. Mr. Ahmad Rusdi Ambassador Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary of the Republic of Indonesia and Permanent Representative to ESCAP (2) Hon. General Worapong Sangnetra Member of the National Legislative Assembly (Thailand) (3) Mr. Juan Reig Member of the World Scout Committee and a liaison officer for Consultative Status Organizations, World Organization of the Scout Movement 	Saladaeng Room

Time	Activity	Location
	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Moderators:- (1) Ms. Krisanee Masrichan Secretariat of the House of Representatives (2) Mr. Adoonrat Nimjaroen The National Scout Organization of Thailand 	
18.30	<p>- Official Dinner for all delegates -</p> <p>hosted by</p> <p>H.E. Prof. Pornpetch Wichitcholchai, President of the National Legislative Assembly of Thailand</p> <p><u>Dress</u>: Lounge Suit / National Dress</p>	Dusit Thani Hall

14th November 2018

Time	Activity	Location
08.00 – 09.00	<p>Executive Committee Meeting</p> <p><i>(Only for the Executive Committee)</i></p>	Silom Room
09.00 – 10.30	<p>Plenary Session</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Report of the Plenary Session Report of each panel group Adoption of the General Assembly report Approval of the Host and Venue of the 10th General Assembly Speech/presentation from the Host of the 10th WSPU General Assembly <p><u>Chair</u>: Hon. Dr. Thamrong Dasananjali</p> <p><u>Secretary</u> : Ms.Steejit Taipiboonsuk</p>	Napalai Ballroom
10.30 – 11.00	<p>Plenary Session (Continued)</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Special Address: “Cooperation Between Scouting in Thailand and the World Scout” <p><u>Speaker</u>: H.E. Mr. Teerakiat Jareonsettasin Minister of Education of Thailand, Chairperson of National Scout Council Board</p>	Napalai Ballroom

Time	Activity	Location
	<ul style="list-style-type: none">Closing Speech from President of the 9th WSPU General Assembly	
11.00	- Lunch -	Dusit Thani Hall
12.30	Depart for Excursion (Optional) : <ul style="list-style-type: none">The Grand Palace and the Temple of the Emerald BuddhaQueen Sirikit Museum of Textiles	Lower Lobby
17.30 – 20.00	- Dinner Cruise - hosted by Hon. Dr. Thamrong Dasananjali Chairperson of the Executive Committee, Thai Scout Parliamentary Association <u>Dress:</u> Casual	

15th November 2018

– Departure of the WSPU delegations –



Bangkok, Thailand

WSPU 9th GA Secretariat

Bureau of Inter-Parliamentary Organizations
Secretariat of the House of Representatives
U-Thong Nai Road, Bangkok, 10300 Thailand
Tel. : +66 2357 3100 (ext.3160-1, 3249)

Fax : +66 2357 3154

E-mail: wspu9th@gmail.com

Agenda of the 9th WSPU General Assembly

13 – 14 November 2018

Dusit Thani Bangkok Hotel

Bangkok, Thailand

**Theme: Roles of the Parliament in Supporting Scout Movement towards
SDGs Achievement**

- Item 1 Approval of the agenda
 - Item 2 Report from the Executive Committee and approval for the new Executive Committee
 - Item 3 Introduction of the new President and Vice-Presidents
 - Item 4 Appointment of a Drafting Committee
 - Item 5 Plenary Session: Review of WSPU Activities for Future Scouting Development
 - Item 6 Panel Discussion I: Roles of the Parliament to Ensure Lifelong Learning
 - Item 7 Panel Discussion II: Possible Contributions of the WSPU to Achieve SDGs
 - Item 8 Panel Discussion III: Scouting and Parliamentary Roles in Synergizing Efforts in Response to Global Challenges
 - Item 9 Report of the Plenary Session Conclusions
 - Item 10 Report of each panel group
 - Item 11 Adoption of General Assembly Report
 - Item 12 Approval for the Host and Venue of the 10th General Assembly
-

Agenda Item 8

Finalization of the Draft
Bangkok Declaration

- DRAFT -

**The 9th WSPU General Assembly
13th - 14th November 2018
Dusit Thani Bangkok Hotel
Bangkok, Thailand**

**Bangkok Declaration
on Roles of the Parliament in Supporting Scout Movement towards SDGs Achievement**

We, parliamentarians from the National Scout Parliamentary Associations (NSPAs) of XX countries/territories representing the X regions of World Scouting, having gathered in Bangkok, the Kingdom of Thailand, for the 9th General Assembly of the World Scout Parliamentary Union (WSPU) from 13 to 14 November 2018 to discuss roles of the parliament in supporting scout movement towards the achievement of the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs);

(1) Concerned by numerous and wide-ranging global development challenges which have impacts on the planet and require international cooperation to address the problems thereon;

(2) Aware that although the said development challenges affect people globally, there are different contexts in each region, country or territory; therefore, different development policies and priorities can be adopted;

(3) Affirming global commitments to the UN resolution titled “Transforming our world: the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development”, which encompasses the 17 SDGs and stimulates favorable actions towards the people, the planet, prosperity, peace and partnership so as to tackle the said challenges;

(4) Reaffirming our pledge to the Commitment of Valparaíso, which was adopted as the outcome document of the 1st WSPU General Assembly in the Republic of Chile in 1994, with an aim to engage with young people, optimize the use of legislative instruments to promote non-formal education as well as youth-related legislation and struggle for a more equitable distribution of resources in favor of young people;

(5) Also reaffirming our commitment to the Manila Declaration, which was adopted as the outcome document of the 2nd WSPU General Assembly in the Republic of the Philippines in 1997, with an emphasis on the importance of scouting as a non-formal educational movement and its possible contribution to the socialization process of young people;

(6) Realizing that parliamentarians have a great deal of potentiality to push ahead with the implementation of the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development and the achievement of the SDGs, owing not only to their representativeness but also to their duties in making laws and approving annual budgets;

(7) Recognizing that scouting, through its person-centered, community-related and spiritually-oriented approach, contains great potential to equip young people with readiness to confront global challenges and contribute to the progress towards many of the SDGs;

(8) Also recognizing that the WSPU, which unites scout-oriented parliamentarians from all over the world, can undertake a more proactive role to marshal knowledge and efforts of these parliamentarians along with their respective NSPAs in supporting the scout movement towards the achievement of the SDGs in their countries;

/Do hereby...

Do hereby proclaim as follows:-

1. We appeal to national parliaments and governments for their support on any initiative to localize, integrate or mainstream the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development and SDGs, into local planning so as to address different developmental priorities and respond to the global commitments in tandem.
2. We urge closer collaboration between national parliaments and governments, along with the NSPAs and the National Scout Organizations (NSOs), on the implementation and the follow-up of the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development, with a particular emphasis on SDGs 3, 4, 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17.
3. We also urge national parliaments to support the implementation and the process to follow up and review SDG 16 on promoting just, peaceful and inclusive society, as well as support on any initiatives and works of concerned government agencies through lawmaking and budgeting.
4. We further urge national parliaments and governments as key sectors relevant to SDG 16 to ensure youth engagement and broad-based participation of stakeholders in the lawmaking, policymaking, policy implementation and budget processes for youth-related issues.
5. We encourage national parliaments to recognize the importance and support accessibility of scouting as a form of non-formal education and lifelong learning embedded in SDG 4 to empower young people.
6. We also encourage national parliaments to make efforts in promoting effective and inclusive governance for health and well-being or SDG 3, which is mutually reinforcing with all other SDGs and core to human development, particularly that of the future generations.
7. We further encourage closer collaboration among national parliaments, public and private sectors and civil society through legislation and all other feasible means, to embrace eco-friendly mindset in all aspects of activities and projects in accordance with SDGs 13, 14 and 15 to achieve the environmental sustainability and guarantee the livable planet for the future generations.
8. We call upon national parliaments to support capacity-building programs for parliamentarians, parliamentary staff, NSPAs and the general public to appreciate the potential contribution and revitalize the global partnership of scouting to the achievement of the SDGs as indicated in SDG 17.
9. We recommend that national parliaments organize and promote awareness-raising campaigns on the significance of youth engagement, especially through scouting, in the implementation of the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development and the achievement of the SDGs.
10. We also recommend closer cooperation both among the WSPU members and between the WSPU and the World Organization of the Scout Movement (WOSM), with an aim to facilitate the realization of the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development and *inter alia* the SDGs through exchange of knowledge, experience and best practices.

Done on the 14th day of November 2018, in Bangkok, the Kingdom of Thailand.

– DRAFT as of 30/10/2018 –

**The 9th WSPU General Assembly
13th - 14th November 2018
Dusit Thani Bangkok Hotel
Bangkok, Thailand**

**Bangkok Declaration
on Roles of the Parliament in Supporting Scout Movement towards SDGs Achievement**

We, parliamentarians from the National Scout Parliamentary Associations (NSPAs) of XX countries/territories representing the X regions of World Scouting, having gathered in Bangkok, the Kingdom of Thailand, for the 9th General Assembly of the World Scout Parliamentary Union (WSPU) from 13 to 14 November 2018 to discuss roles of the parliament in supporting scout movement towards the achievement of the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs);

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes amending the introductory paragraph as follows:

We, parliamentarians from the National Scout Parliamentary Associations (NSPAs) of XX countries/territories representing the X regions of World Scouting, having gathered in Bangkok, the Kingdom of Thailand, for the 9th General Assembly of the World Scout Parliamentary Union (WSPU) from 13 to 14 November 2018 to discuss roles of the parliament in supporting scout movement towards the achievement of the ~~Sustainable~~ **Balanced** Development Goals (~~SDGs~~) (**BDGs**);

Rationale: Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".

(1) Concerned by numerous and wide-ranging global development challenges which have impacts on the planet and require international cooperation to address the problems thereon;

No amendment has been proposed.

(2) Aware that although the said development challenges affect people globally, there are different contexts in each region, country or territory; therefore, different development policies and priorities can be adopted;

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes amending the 2nd preambular paragraph as follows:

(2) Aware that ~~although the said development challenges affect people globally, there are different contexts in each region, country or territory; therefore, different development policies and priorities can be adopted;~~ **the challenges imposed by the development policies adopted in many countries in the world have serious impacts on the climate and the environment,**

and are reflected negatively on all people on the earth and represent a real threat to the future of all mankind, which requires the consensus between the governments of the countries concerned to review and update these policies to supports the achievement of BDGs and preserves and ensures sustainability of wealth, resources, ecology and the environment.

Rationale:

- (i) Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".
- (ii) Our goal should be the idealist use of the world wealth and resources, and preserve the ecology and environment, finally ensure their sustainability for our future generations.
- (iii) So the sustainability is not related to the development but it's for the wealth, resources, ecology and the environment in case of better use the balanced development.
- (iv) The qualitative errors in the use of wealth and resources effect the ecology and the environment, but quantitative errors prevent their sustainability.
- (v) So the balance, of both quantitative and qualitatively use of the world wealth and resources should be our primary goal. WSPU should seriously fight to push all world countries to this values.

(3) Affirming global commitments to the UN resolution titled “Transforming our world: the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development”, which encompasses the 17 SDGs and stimulates favorable actions towards the people, the planet, prosperity, peace and partnership so as to tackle the said challenges;

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes amending the 3rd preambular paragraph as follows:

(3) Affirming global commitments to the UN resolution titled “Transforming our world: the 2030 Agenda for ~~Sustainable~~ **Balanced** Development”, which encompasses the 17 ~~SDGs~~ **BDGs** and stimulates favorable actions towards the people, the planet, prosperity, peace and partnership so as to tackle the said challenges;

Rationale: Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".

(4) Reaffirming our pledge to the Commitment of Valparaíso, which was adopted as the outcome document of the 1st WSPU General Assembly in the Republic of Chile in 1994, with an aim to engage with young people, optimize the use of legislative instruments to promote non-formal education as well as youth-related legislation and struggle for a more equitable distribution of resources in favor of young people;

No amendment has been proposed.

(5) Also reaffirming our commitment to the Manila Declaration, which was adopted as the outcome document of the 2nd WSPU General Assembly in the Republic of the Philippines in 1997, with an emphasis on the importance of scouting as a non-formal educational movement and its possible contribution to the socialization process of young people;

No amendment has been proposed.

(6) Realizing that parliamentarians have a great deal of potentiality to push ahead with the implementation of the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development and the achievement of the SDGs, owing not only to their representativeness but also to their duties in making laws and approving annual budgets;

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes amending the 6th preambular paragraph as follows:

(6) Realizing that parliamentarians have a great deal of potentiality to push ahead with the implementation of the 2030 Agenda for ~~Sustainable~~ **Balanced** Development and the achievement of the ~~SDGs~~ **BDGs**, owing not only to their representativeness but also to their duties in making ~~laws~~ **regulations** and approving **the projects of the** annual **national** budgets;

Rationale: Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".

(7) Recognizing that scouting, through its person-centered, community-related and spiritually-oriented approach, contains great potential to equip young people with readiness to confront global challenges and contribute to the progress towards many of the SDGs;

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes amending the 7th preambular paragraph as follows:

(7) Recognizing that scouting, through its person-centered, community-related and spiritually-oriented approach, contains great potential to equip young people with readiness to confront global challenges and contribute to the progress towards many of the ~~SDGs~~ **BDGs**;

Rationale: Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".

(8) Also recognizing that the WSPU, which unites scout-oriented parliamentarians from all over the world, can undertake a more proactive role to marshal knowledge and efforts of these parliamentarians along with their respective NSPAs in supporting the scout movement towards the achievement of the SDGs in their countries;

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes amending the 8th preambular paragraph as follows:

(8) Also recognizing that the WSPU, which unites scout-oriented parliamentarians from all over the world, can undertake a more proactive role to marshal knowledge and efforts of these parliamentarians along with their respective NSPAs in supporting the scout movement towards the achievement of the **SDGs BDGs** in their countries;

Rationale: Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".

Do hereby proclaim as follows:-

1. We appeal to national parliaments and governments for their support on any initiative to localize, integrate or mainstream the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development and **SDGs**, into local planning so as to address different developmental priorities and respond to the global commitments in tandem.

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes amending the 1st operative paragraph as follows:

1. We appeal to national parliaments and governments for their support on any initiative to localize, integrate or mainstream the 2030 Agenda for ~~Sustainable~~ **Balanced** Development and **SDGs BDGs**, into local planning so as to address different developmental priorities and respond to the global commitments in tandem.

Rationale: Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".

2. We urge closer collaboration between national parliaments and governments, along with the NSPAs and the National Scout Organizations (NSOs), on the implementation and the follow-up of the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development, with a particular emphasis on **SDGs** 3, 4, 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17.

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes amending the 2nd operative paragraph as follows:

2. We urge closer collaboration between national parliaments and governments, ~~along with~~ **through** the NSPAs ~~and~~ **with** the National Scout Organizations (NSOs), ~~on~~ **as important tool to support** the implementation and the follow-up of the 2030 Agenda for ~~Sustainable~~ **Balanced** Development, ~~with a particular emphasis on~~ **specially** **SDGs the BDGs** 3, 4, 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17.

Rationale: Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".

3. We also urge national parliaments to support the implementation and the process to follow up and review SDG 16 on promoting just, peaceful and inclusive society, as well as support on any initiatives and works of concerned government agencies through lawmaking and budgeting.

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes amending the 3rd operative paragraph as follows:

3. We also urge national parliaments to support the implementation and the process to follow up and review ~~SDG~~ **BDG** 16 on promoting just, peaceful and inclusive society, as well as support on any initiatives and works of concerned government ~~agencies~~ **institutions** through lawmaking and budgeting.

Rationale: Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".

4. We further urge national parliaments and governments as key sectors relevant to SDG 16 to ensure youth engagement and broad-based participation of stakeholders in the lawmaking, policymaking, policy implementation and budget processes for youth-related issues.

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes amending the 4th operative paragraph as follows:

4. We further urge national parliaments and governments as key sectors relevant to ~~SDG~~ **BDG** 16 to ensure youth engagement and broad-based participation of stakeholders in the lawmaking, policymaking, policy implementation and budget processes for youth-related issues.

Rationale: Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".

5. We encourage national parliaments to recognize the importance and support accessibility of scouting as a form of non-formal education and lifelong learning embedded in SDG 4 to empower young people.

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes amending the 5th operative paragraph as follows:

5. We encourage national parliaments to recognize the importance and support accessibility of scouting as a form of non-formal education and lifelong learning embedded in ~~SDG~~ **BDG** 4 to empower young people.

Rationale: Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".

6. We also encourage national parliaments to make efforts in promoting effective and inclusive governance for health and well-being or SDG 3, which is mutually reinforcing with all other SDGs and core to human development, particularly that of the future generations.

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes amending the 6th operative paragraph as follows:

6. We also encourage national parliaments to make efforts in promoting effective and inclusive governance for health and well-being or ~~SDG~~ **BDG** 3, which is mutually reinforcing with all other ~~SDGs~~ **BDGs** and core to human development, particularly that of the future generations.

Rationale: Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".

7. We further encourage closer collaboration among national parliaments, public and private sectors and civil society through legislation and all other feasible means, to embrace eco-friendly mindset in all aspects of activities and projects in accordance with SDGs 13, 14 and 15 to achieve the environmental sustainability and guarantee the livable planet for the future generations.

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes amending the 7th operative paragraph as follows:

7. We further encourage closer collaboration among national parliaments, public and private sectors and civil society through legislation and all other feasible means, to embrace eco-friendly mindset in all aspects of activities and projects in accordance with ~~SDGs~~ **BDGs** 13, 14 and 15 to achieve the environmental sustainability and guarantee the livable planet for the future generations.

Rationale: Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".

8. We call upon national parliaments to support capacity-building programs for parliamentarians, parliamentary staff, NSPAs and the general public to appreciate the potential contribution and revitalize the global partnership of scouting to the achievement of the SDGs as indicated in SDG 17.

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes amending the 8th operative paragraph as follows:

8. We call upon national parliaments to support capacity-building programs for parliamentarians, parliamentary staff, NSPAs and the general public to appreciate the potential contribution and revitalize the global partnership of scouting to the achievement of the ~~SDGs~~ **BDGs** as indicated in ~~SDG~~ **BDG** 17.

Rationale: Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".

9. We recommend that national parliaments organize and promote awareness-raising campaigns on the significance of youth engagement, especially through scouting, in the implementation of the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development and the achievement of the SDGs.

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes amending the 9th operative paragraph as follows:

9. We recommend that national parliaments organize and promote awareness-raising campaigns on the significance of youth engagement, especially through scouting, in the implementation of the 2030 Agenda for ~~Sustainable~~ **Balanced** Development and the achievement of the ~~SDGs~~ **BDGs**.

Rationale: Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".

10. We also recommend closer cooperation both among the WSPU members and between the WSPU and the World Organization of the Scout Movement (WOSM), with an aim to facilitate the realization of the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development and *inter alia* the SDGs through exchange of knowledge, experience and best practices.

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes amending the 10th operative paragraph as follows:

10. We also recommend closer cooperation both among the WSPU members and between the WSPU and the World Organization of the Scout Movement (WOSM), with an aim to facilitate the realization of the 2030 Agenda for ~~Sustainable~~ **Balanced** Development and *inter alia* the ~~SDGs~~ **BDGs** through exchange of knowledge, experience and best practices.

Rationale: Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".

I. The Libyan Delegation proposes adding one paragraph after the 10th operative paragraph as follows:

10/1. Be aware to support and amplifying the contributions of the members of the Scout National Societies for resolving local political crises and their engagement in the national reconciliation programs and social peace in some countries of the world experiencing such crises through NSAs for pressure on parliaments, governments and UN missions to end the political divisions through dialogue and consensus between the local conflict parties. Which will drive to the solution of “security, economic...social crises” According to the above the scouts should not only confined in their traditional work “relief and humanitarian works only....”.

Rationale:

- (i) Some of Libyan experts do not agree with the term of "sustainable development" and emphasize the right is "balanced development".

- (ii) Our goal should be the idealist use of the world wealth and resources, and preserve the ecology and environment, finally ensure their sustainability for our future generations.
- (iii) So the sustainability is not related to the development but it's for the wealth, resources, ecology and the environment in case of better use the balanced development.
- (iv) The qualitative errors in the use of wealth and resources effect the ecology and the environment, but quantitative errors prevent their sustainability.
- (v) So the balance, of both quantitative and qualitatively use of the world wealth and resources should be our primary goal. WSPU should seriously fight to push all world countries to this values.

Done on the 14th day of November 2018, in Bangkok, the Kingdom of Thailand.
